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DISTRICT 1
LEGAL DEPARTMENT

August 7, 2011

TO: Chiefs of Police, Sheriffs,
District Attorneys,
Shopping Center Owners,
Neutral Employers, or
Others, as Appropriate

Re: Picketing of Neutral Sites by Members of
Communications Workers of America

To Whom It May Concern:

The undersigned represents the Communications Workers of America who
are currently involved in a strike against Verizon. During the course of this strike CWA
and its members may lawfully engage in peaceful picketing and handbilling wherever
there is a Verizon worksite. CWA and its members may also follow the work and
lawfully picket any temporary worksite involving Verizon. CWA picketers may also
picket Verizon work, "struck work," that is being done by another contractor. We are
writing to solicit your cooperation in maintaining the peaceful and lawful nature of this
labor dispute and to clarify the law regarding these activities.

Peaceful picketing in the course of a labor dispute is immunized from the
application of state trespass or other restrictive local laws by the provisions of the
National Labor Relations Act, 29 U.S.C. Section 7 et seq.. and the First and Fourteenth
Amendments to the Constitution of the United States. Police Department of Chicago v.
Moselv, 408 U.S. 92 (1972); Thornhill v. Alabama, 310 U.S. 88 (1940); Scott Hudgens,
230 NLRB 414 (1977).

Federal law extends the privilege of such immunity to instances where
picketers follow the struck work to an off-site location of the struck employer or to the
site of a neutral business. See, Moore Dry Dock, 92 NLRB 547 (1950). Picketers, for




instance, are permitted to follow the trucks of their employer to any worksite and picket

either on-site or at entrances to the site. Teamsters Local 126 & Ready Mixed Concrete,
200 NLRB 253 (1972); Moore Dry Dock, 92 NLRB 547 (1950).

When picketing work being done by Verizon, or one of its subsidiaries, or a
contractor doing struck work, at the facility of another employer, picketers must (1) limit
picketing to times when Verizon or its contractor are present at the worksite; (2) engaged
in its normal business; (3) be reasonably close to the work being done by Verizon or its
contractor; and (4) have picket signs that clearly state the dispute is with Verizon. Moore
Dry Dock, 92 NLRB 547 (1950).

During a 1998 strike by CWA, Bell Atlantic (the predecessor Company to
Verizon) unlawfully caused the arrest of three mobile picketers. After an investigation by
the National Labor Relations Board, Bell Atlantic settled by posting a notice agreeing not
to cause the arrest of employees engaging in mobile picketing or interfere with employees
protected rights in any like manner. A copy of the notice, signed by a Bell Atlantic's
Labor Relations General Manager is attached.

The legal protection afforded mobile picketing also extends to picketing on
private property, such as shopping malls, industrial parks or office buildings, whether or
not these locations are owned by the employer being picketed. Scott Hudgens, supra;
Plymouth Park Shopping Center, 266 NLRB 481 (1983); Seattle First National Bank, 243
NLRB 899 (1979). Property owners who interfere with such peaceful picketing violate
Section 8(a) (1) of the Act. Id.

We trust the foregoing will make clear the protection afforded striking
workers under federal law and thus assist CWA members in the exercise of their rights.
Should any problems develop with any aspect of the application of these principles to the
current labor dispute, please do not hesitate to telephone me so that we may reach an
amicable resolution of the matter.

Very truly yours,

Gabrielle Semel

GS/dad
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